
 

 

 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Regular Meeting 

Dripping Springs ISD Center for Learning and Leadership 

Board Room, 300 Sportsplex Drive – Dripping Springs, Texas 

Tuesday, March 04, 2025, at 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

City Council Members 
Mayor Bill Foulds, Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tem Taline Manassian 

Council Member Place 2 Wade King 

Council Member Place 3 Geoffrey Tahuahua 

Council Member Place 4 Travis Crow 

Council Member Place 5 Sherrie Parks 

Staff, Consultants, & Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Administrator Michelle Fischer 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

Deputy City Administrator Shawn Cox 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

Deputy City Attorney Aniz Alani 

City Secretary Diana Boone 

People & Communications Director Lisa Sullivan 

Parks & Community Services Director Andy Binz 

Planning Director Tory Carpentar 

Human Resources Director Chase Winburn 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

Board Members 

Chair Bill Foulds, Jr. 

Taline Manassian 

Wade King 

Geoffrey Tahuahua 

Travis Crow 

Sherrie Parks 



 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

1. Public hearing, discussion, and consideration of approval of VAR2024-013: a variance 

request to allow three commercial buildings within the side building setback for the 

property located at 1300 E US 290. Applicant: Shawn Beichler, AAA Storage-Storserv  

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Planning & Zoning Commission Report 

d. Public Hearing 

e. Variance 

2. Public hearing, discussion, and consideration of approval of VAR2024-014: a variance 

request to waive the masonry fence requirement for a commercial development on the 

property located at 1300 E US 290. Applicant: Shawn Beichler, AAA Storage-Storserv  

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Planning & Zoning Commission Report                                                     

d. Public Hearing 

e. Variance 

3. Public hearing, discussion, and consideration of approval of VAR2024-010: a variance 

request to allow a commercial building larger than 50,000 square feet in a Commercial 

Services zoning district for a property located at 598 E US 290. Applicant: Zachary 

Morgan, Quiddity 

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Planning & Zoning Commission Report 

d. Public Hearing 

e. Variance 

CITY COUNCIL 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public that wishes to address the City Council on any issue, regardless of whether it is 

posted on this agenda, may do so during Presentation of Citizens. It is the request of the City Council that 

individuals wishing to speak on agenda items with a public hearing hold their comments until the item is 

being considered. Individuals are allowed two (2) minutes each to speak regarding issues not on the 

agenda and two (2) minutes per item on the agenda and may not cede or pool time. Those requiring the 

assistance of a translator will be allowed additional time to speak. Individuals are not required to sign 

in; however, it is encouraged. Individuals that wish to share documents with the City Council must present 

the documents to the City Secretary or City Attorney providing at least seven (7) copies; if seven (7) copies 

are not provided, the City Council will receive the documents the following day. Audio Video presentations 

will not be accepted during Presentation of Citizens. By law no action shall be taken during Presentation 



 

 

of Citizens; however, the Mayor may provide a statement of specific factual information, recitation of 

existing policy, or direction or referral to staff. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items will be acted upon in a single motion and are considered to be ministerial or routine. 

No separate discussion or action on these items will be held unless pulled at the request of a member of 

the City Council or City staff. 

4. Approval of the February 18, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes. 

5. Discuss and consider approval of a Facility Use Agreement between the City of Dripping 

Springs and Tiger Splash TAAF Swim Team related to use of the Founders Memorial 

Pool for the 2025 swim season. Sponsor: Mayor Pro Tem Manassian 

6. Discuss and consider approval of a resolution suspending the April 12, 2025 effective 

date of the interim rate adjustments proposed by Texas Gas Service Company for the 

maximum period allowed by Texas Utilities Code § 104.301(a) to permit adequate time 

to review the proposed increases, analyze all necessary information, and take 

appropriate action related to the proposed increases. Sponsor: Mayor Pro Tem Manassian 

7. Approval of a Resolution Accepting Improvements and Approving a Maintenance Bond 

for Caliterra Phase 2, Section 7 – Wastewater. Applicant: DNT Construction, LLC 

8. Approval of a Resolution Accepting Improvements and Approving a Maintenance Bond 

for Caliterra Phase 5, Section 13 – Wastewater. Applicant: DNT Construction, LLC 

9. Approval of a Resolution Accepting Improvements and Approving a Maintenance Bond 

for the Driftwood Golf & Ranch Club Phase 3B – Water & Wastewater Improvements. 

Applicant: Jimmy Evans Company 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

10. Public hearing, discussion, and consideration of approval of ZA2024-007: a zoning 

amendment request from PDD 1 to Commercial Services (CS) for Lot 1, Block B of the 

Dripping Springs Retail Center located at 598 E US 290. Applicant: Zachary Morgan, 

Quiddity  

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Planning & Zoning Commission Report 

d. Public Hearing 

e. Zoning Amendment 

11. Public hearing, discussion, and consideration of approval of an ordinance regarding 

DA2025-001: an application amending the Driftwood 552 Development Agreement to 

expand the existing Driftwood 552 Development Agreement Area by annexing Lots 5 & 

6 of the Down Stream Subdivision. Applicant: Zachary Morgan, P.E. 



 

 

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Planning & Zoning Commission Report 

d. Public Hearing 

e. Amendment 

12. Discuss and consider approval of an Ordinance Amending Article 28.06 Landscaping 

and Tree Preservation Ordinance; Establishing Regulations for Development and the 

Preservation of Trees, related to Differentiating between Regulations Applicable to 

Projects in the City Limits or Extraterritorial Jurisdiction.  Sponsor: Mayor Pro Tem 

Manassian 

13. Public hearing, discussion, and consideration of approval of proposed amendments to 

the Standards of Care Ordinance, Chapter 16 Public Ways and Places, Article 16.02. 

Parks and Recreation, Division 3. Youth Programs' Standards of Care. Sponsor: Mayor 

Pro Tem Taline Manassian 

14. Discuss and consider approval of an Ordinance amending the Solicitation Ordinance 

with respect to the regulation of Itinerant Vendors and Special Events. Sponsor: Council 

Member Sherrie Parks 

a. Staff Report 

b. Public Hearing 

c. Ordinance 

15. Discuss and consider approval of an Ordinance Cancelling the 2025 Municipal Election. 

16. Discuss and consider approval of a Resolution revising the City of Dripping Springs 

Personnel Manual. Sponsor: Mayor Bill Foulds, Jr. 

17. Discuss and consider Appeal of the Takings Assessment related to the Hardy Tract 

project.  Appellant: Jamie Rose, Greenberg Traurig 

a. Staff Report on Options 

b. Appeal 

18. Discuss and consider approval of an Ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget 

related to Parks & Recreation Expenses. Sponsor: Mayor Pro Tem Taline Manassian 

a. Staff Report 

b. Public Hearing 

c. Budget Amendment 

19. Discuss and consider adoption of the Fiscal Year 2025 - 2026 Budget Calendar.  Sponsor: 

Mayor Bill Foulds, Jr.  

20. Discuss and consider projects related to the proposed Certificates of 

Obligation.  Sponsor: Mayor Bill Foulds, Jr.  

  



 

 

REPORTS 

Reports listed are on file and available for review upon request. The City Council may provide staff 

direction; however, no action shall be taken. 

21. Building Official Update on approved side setback variance for 406 Sue Peaks 

Loop.  Shane Pevehouse, Building Official 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council has the right to adjourn into closed session on any item on this agenda and at any time 

during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by law or by the Open Meetings Act, 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation With Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberation 

Regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberation Regarding Prospective Gifts), 551.074 (Personnel 

Matters), 551.076 (Deliberation Regarding Security Devices or Security Audits), and 551.087 

(Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations), and 551.089 (Deliberation Regarding 

Security Devices or Security Audits). Any final action or vote on any Closed Session item will be taken in 

Open Session. 

22. Consultation with Attorney and Deliberation Regarding Real Property related to TIRZ 

Priority Projects and Other Potential Strategic Real Property 

Acquisitions. (Consultation with Attorney, 551.071; Deliberation Regarding Real Property, 

551.072) 

23. Consultation with City Attorney related to legal issues regarding land use, economic 

development, waiver process, and infrastructure requirements and rough 

proportionality.  (551.071, Consultation with Attorney).   

24. Consultation with Attorney regarding legal issues related to the South Regional Water 

Reclamation Project, Wastewater, and Amendment 2 Permits, Wastewater Service Area 

and Agreements, Water Service and Agreements, Wastewater Fees, Wastewater 

Infrastructure Agreements, facility liability coverage, and related items. (Consultation 

with Attorney, 551.071) 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 

March 25, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

April 1, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

April 15, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

Board, Commission, & Committee Meetings 

Historic Preservation Commission, March 6, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. 

TIRZ No.1 & No. 2 Board, March 10, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. 

Founders Day Commission, March 10, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. 



 

 

 

ADJOURN 

 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF MEETING 

I certify that this public meeting is posted in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 551, Open 

Meetings. This meeting agenda is posted on the bulletin board at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall, 

located at 511 Mercer Street, and on the City website at, www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on February 

28, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
Diana Boone, City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Request for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725.  



Board of Adjustments 
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

   

 
 

 

 

City Council Meeting: March 4, 2025 

Project No:  VAR2024-013 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP, Planning Director 

Item Details 

Project Name: AAA Storage-Storserv Setback Variance 

Property Location: 1300 E US 290 

Legal Description: 5.02 Acres out of the CH Mallot Survey 

Applicant: Shawn Beichler, AAA Storage 

Property Owner: John Muhuch, 

Request: 
Applicant is requesting a variance to allow three structures within the side building 

setback.  



Planning Department Staff Report   
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the side setback requirement from 15 feet to 10 feet for the AAA Self 

Storage facility located at 1300 E US 290. The site was initially developed in the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 

during its first phase. On April 4, 2023, the property was annexed to accommodate an increase in impervious cover for the 

construction of a second phase of the development. 

The use of self-storage on the site required approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), which was granted September 5, 

2023. While the conceptual site plan submitted with the CUP application identified building locations, it did not specify 

setback measurements. However, the concept site plan depicted three proposed buildings within 10 feet of the property line, 

which does not meet the current 15-foot side setback requirement established by the zoning ordinance. 

Project Timeline: 

 September 17, 2020 – Phase 1 site plan approved (ETJ) 

 May 19, 2022 – Phase 2 site plan extension approved (ETJ) 

 March 28, 2024 – Staff inspected the site for runoff issues 

 April 4, 2023 – Annexation and Zoning approved 

 September 5, 2023 – Conditional Use Permit approved 

 

The applicant provided the following statement for the justification of the request: 

“The Site Plan was originally approved as part of the Conditional Use Permit and Annexation Agreement. The 

Site Plan dimensions have not changed, and the building configuration was shown as a 10' BSL off the eastern 

property line as a part of that agreement. It appears to be an oversight during that process. By enforcing the 15' 

BSL, this reduces the building depth by 5', causing a reduction in the building footprint. 

The project has been annexed into the City and will be following City of Dripping Springs Development 

Regulations for Phase 2, improving the overall standard of the project. This also includes bringing portions of 

Phase 1 up to the ordinance standards as well. 

 

 

Code Requirement Applicant Request Difference 

Structures must be at least 15’ from the 

side property line 

 

Approximately 10’ from the side property 

line 

 

5’ 



Planning Department Staff Report   
 

 

  

 

         



Planning Department Staff Report   
 
 

Surrounding Properties 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North PDD – Gateway Village 
Vacant Land. Future residential 

and commercial site 

Not Shown East Commercial Services (CS) Retail 

South Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Residential 

West Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Residential 

 

Approval Criteria for Variance (2.22.2-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 
1. there are special circumstances or conditions 

affecting the land involved such that the literal 

enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter would 

deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of the 

land; and 

The property does not exhibit any unique or special 

physical conditions that prevent compliance with the 15-

foot side setback. The applicant has reasonable use of the 

land without the requested variance. 

2. the variance is necessary for the preservation and 

enjoyment of a substantial property right of the 

applicant; and by preserving the natural features and 

topography of the land; and 

The variance is not necessary to preserve a substantial 

property right, as the site can be reasonably developed in 

compliance with the required setback. The need for the 

variance is based on the applicant's design choices rather 

than the site’s natural features. 

3. the granting of the variance will not be detrimental 

to the public health, safety or welfare, or injurious 

to other property within the area; and 

Granting the variance could negatively impact adjacent 

properties by reducing the buffer between developments. 

The reduced setback may also set a precedent for future 

variances in the area. 

4. the granting of the variance constitutes a minimal 

departure from this Chapter; and 

The variance would reduce the required setback by 33%. 

5. the subject circumstances or conditions giving rise 

to the alleged hardship are not self-imposed, are not 

based solely on economic gain or loss, and do not 

generally affect most properties in the vicinity of 

the property; and 

The hardship is self-imposed as it is caused by design 

decisions rather than inherent site constraints. 

6. Granting the variance is in harmony with the spirit, 

general purpose, and intent of this Chapter so that:  

a.  the public health, safety and welfare may 

be secured; and  

b. that substantial justice may be done. 

The variance is not in harmony with the intent of the 

zoning ordinance, which seeks to maintain adequate 

setbacks to ensure compatibility between properties and 

protect public safety and welfare. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Department Staff Report   
 
Summary and Recommendation 

At their regular meeting on January 27, 2025, the Planning & Zoning Commission voted unanimously to recommend 

denial.  

Staff recommends denial of the variance request.  

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of the 

Variance request. 

Meetings Schedule 

January 27, 2025 Planning & Zoning Commission 

March 4, 2025 Board of Adjustments 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Variance Application 

Attachment 2 – Application Materials 

 

Recommended Action Recommend denial of the requested variance  

Alternatives/Options Recommend approval of the variance with or without conditions. 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 













450

438
437

436

435

460

336

337

344

343 342

339338

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

X
X

X
X

X

X

XXXXXXX
X

X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X

345

346

(S 03°24'21" E  793.51')

(S
 8

2°
44

'1
2"

 E
  2

84
.1

7'
)

(N 03°16'45" W  758.51')

(S 03°24'21" E  793.61')

(S
 8

2°
44

'1
2"

 W
  2

84
.1

7'
)

(N 03°16'45" W  758.51')

M
M

//

//
//

//
//

O
H

O
H

MM

MMMMMMMMMMMMMMM

MMMMMMMMMM

88888888

8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8

8
8

8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

OH

O
H

MMMM

M
M

M

8
8
8
8
8

88888

8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8

M
M

M
M

M
M

M
M

M
M

M

MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM

FFE=1228.10

1228

1227

1226 1225

1228.73

1227.80

1227.60

1227.50
1227.30

1226.77

1224.701226.73

1224.80

1224

1222

1221 12
20

12
19 12

18

12
17

12
16 12
15

12
14 12

13

12
12 1211

1210
1209

1208
1207 1206

1205

1204

1203

1223

1224.001224.25

1223.60
1221.60

1220.80

1220.45

1220.50 1218.40
1218.30

1217.90 1217.65

1216.20
1215.201214.85 1214.60

1213.20

1213.30 1212.00

1211.90

1211.55 1211.30

1207.50

1207.50

1210.95
1211.201212.82

1213.131214.60

1220.75
1224.001224.50

FFE=1224.80 FFE=1221.60

FFE=1215.20
FFE=1218.40

FFE=1212.00

1229

1217.40

1214.30

FFE=1207.50

FFE=1202.50

FFE=1202.00

 15

O
VE

RA
LL

 G
RA

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

8

N

CAUTION!

CONTRACTOR SHALL EXERCISE CAUTION DURING
DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION, CLEARING AND
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES NEAR OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC LINES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY
WITH ALL SAFETY REGULATIONS WHEN OPERATING
NEAR POWER LINES.

DIG TESS:

CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT 1-800-DIG-TESS A MINIMUM
OF 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY (ON OR OFFSITE) FOR THE PROJECT.

TRENCH EXCAVATION SAFETY PROTECTION

CONTRACTOR, SUB-CONTRACTOR AND/OR
CONTRACTOR'S INDEPENDENTLY RETAINED
EMPLOYEE, OR STRUCTURAL/GEOTECHNICAL/SAFETY
EQUIPMENT CONSULTANT, SHALL REVIEW THESE
PLANS AND GEOTECHNICAL REPORT, THE
INSTALLATION SITES WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA IN
ORDER TO IMPLEMENT CONTRACTORS TRENCH
EXCAVATION SAFETY PROTECTION PLAN, SYSTEMS
AND/OR PROCEDURES SHALL PROVIDE FOR ADEQUATE
TRENCH SAFETY PROTECTION THAT COMPLY WITH AS
A MINIMUM OSHA STANDARDS, SPECIFICALLY ,
CONTRACTOR AND/OR RETAINED EMPLOYEE OR
SAFETY CONSULTANT SHALL IMPLEMENT A TRENCH
SAFETY PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH OSHA
REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PRESENCE AND
ACTIVITIES OF INDIVIDUALS WORKING IN AND/OR
AROUND THE EXPOSED TRENCH EXCAVATION.

LEGEND
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LOT LINE

EASEMENT LINE

SITE BENCHMARK

PROPERTY CORNER

GAS LINE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

FENCE LINE

EXISTING TREE

SIGN

POWER POLE

EXISTING FLOW ARROW

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED FLOW ARROW

PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION

PROPOSED DRAINAGE
SWALE/CONCENTRATED FLOW PATH IN
PAVED AREAS

GRADING NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL
BUILDING, SAFETY, AND INSPECTION REGULATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT EXISTING FACILITIES TO REMAIN
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO STRUCTURES, PAVEMENT,
TREES, FENCES LANDSCAPING, UTILITIES, ETC.  ALL EXISTING
FACILITIES SHALL BE IN ORIGINAL OR BETTER CONDITION AT THE
COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

3. DURING CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN
UNRESTRICTED DRAINAGE.  NO PONDING OF STORM DRAINAGE
SHALL BE PERMITTED IN AREAS OF PREPARED SUBGRADE OR
EXCAVATION, EMBANKMENT. IF PONDING SHOULD OCCUR,
CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY PUMP OUT OR GRAVITY DRAIN
PONDING WATER OUT OF IMPACTED AREAS. IF ANY DAMAGE
OCCURRED TO SUBGRADE, BUILDING PAD OR EXCAVATION
AREAS, THE SOILS MUST BE DRIED OUT, REMOVED, REPLACED
AND RE-COMPACTED.

4. DISTURBED AREAS (CONSTRUCTION AREAS) SHALL BE STRIPPED
OF VEGETATION, LOOSE TOPSOIL, ORGANICS, BRUSH AND DEBRIS.
AFTERWARDS, THE EXPOSED SUBGRADE SHALL SHALL BE PROOF
ROLLED WITH A MINIMUM 25 TON PNEUMATIC ROLLER. ANY WEAK
AREAS DETECTED SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH
SUITABLE SOILS OF SIMILAR TYPE (CLASSIFICATION, MOISTURE
CONTENT AND DENSITY).

5. IF REQUIRED TO MODIFY EXISTING GRADE, FILL MATERIALS
SHOULD BE PLACED ON PREPARED SURFACES IN LIFTS NOT

EXCEED 8 INCHES (LOOSE MEASURE), WITH COMPACTED
THICKNESS NOT TO EXCEED 6 INCHES OR AS INDICATED IN SITE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. FILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO
OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT OR UP TO +3 PERCENTAGE POINTS
OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT TO A MINIMUM OF 95%
MAXIMUM DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY TXDOT, TEX-114-E OR AS
DESCRIBED IN THE SITE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

6. ALL FILL MATERIALS SHALL BE CLEAR OF DEBRIS, ORGANICS AND
VEGETATION. IF IMPORTED FILL IS USED, IT SHALL BE A RELATIVELY
HOMOGENEOUS PARTICLE SIZE DISTRIBUTION, WITH MAX SIZE OF
3 INCHES , PLASTICITY INDEX BETWEEN 7 AND 20 AND A LIQUID
LIMIT LESS THAN 40; OR AS INDICATED ON THE GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT.

7. ANY EXCESS EXCAVATION MATERIALS NOT USED, SHALL BECOME
PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL BE DISPOSED OF
OFFSITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL
LAWS.

8. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING WITH THE TCEQ FOR
THE TEMPORARY STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
NOTICE TO PROCEED AND NOTICE OF TERMINATION AT THE
START AND END OF CONSTRUCTION.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP A COPY OF APPROVED
CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS ONSITE AT ALL TIMES.

10. ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT/GUTTER LINE
OF CURB, FINISHED GRADE, FINISHED GRADE ADJACENT TO
WALLS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED AS BELOW

HP HIGH POINT
LP LOW POINT
ME MATCH EXISTING
TC TOP OF CURB AT BACK
TS TOP OF STRUCTURE
TW  TOP OF WALL
BW FINISHED GRADE AT BOTTOM OF WALL
FFE FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION
FG FINISHED GRADE

11. STORM SEWER PIPE SHALL BE ADS HP STORM (HPPP) PIPE, OR AS
CALLED OUT ON PLANS.

12. ALL ADA PARKING STALLS, WALKING AISLES AND PATHWAYS
SHALL NOT EXCEED 2% SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION. RAMPS SHALL
NOT EXCEED 8.033% SLOPE.

101

100

600.00

101

100

C
:\H

C
C

\O
ne

D
riv

e 
- H

ill 
C

ou
nt

ry
 C

iv
il\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\0
41

 A
AA

 S
to

ra
ge

\0
3 

St
or

se
rv

 D
rip

pi
ng

 S
pr

in
gs

 P
ha

se
 2

\1
 - 

C
AD

\2
 - 

Sh
ee

ts
\0

41
-0

3 
G

R
D

.d
w

g

SHEET No.

September 13, 2024

OF

Copyright Hill Country Civil, LLC

H
ill

 C
ou

nt
ry

 C
iv

il
En

gi
ne

er
s 

    
 C

on
su

lt
an

ts
Te

xa
s 

Fi
rm

 L
ic

en
se

 N
o.

 F
-2

28
72

10
42

 N
or

th
pa

rk
 R

id
ge

, N
ew

 B
ra

un
fe

ls
, T

X 
78

13
0

Ph
on

e:
 8

17
-6

59
-9

07
8 

or
 2

10
-3

78
-4

95
3

w
w

w
.h

ill
co

un
tr

yc
iv

il.
co

m

N
o.

Da
te

Re
vi

si
on

s
Ap

p.

AA
A 

ST
O

R
SE

R
V 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

 P
H

AS
E 

2

HC
C

 JO
B 

N
o.

:  
 0

41
-0

3
DR

AW
N

 B
Y.

:  
 R

TC

13
00

 E
 U

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 2
90

 W
ES

T
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S,

 T
EX

AS

THIS DOCUMENT ISSUED ON
13 September 2024

UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF
 ROSS CORDER, P.E.

(LICENSE NO. 125401)
IS RELEASED FOR THE PURPOSE

OF REVIEW ONLY. THIS
DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE USED
FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING,

OR PERMITTING PURPOSES.

!!CAUTION!! OVERHEAD POWER LINES

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING
BUILDING 2

110' x 30'
(STORAGE)

EXISTING
BUILDING 3

145' x 70'
(STORAGE)

EXISTING
BUILDING 4
117.5' x 40'
(STORAGE)

EXISTING
BUILDING 5

145' x 70'
(STORAGE)

EXISTING
BUILDING 6
117.5' x 40'
(STORAGE)

EXISTING
BUILDING 1

35' x 30'

CONCRETE WALL

DRAIN

EXISTING
DETENTION

POND

CONCRETE DRAIN

RIP RAP

EXISTING
WATER

QUALITY
POND

TEMPORARY
BENCHMARK (TBM)
IRON ROD SET
ELEVATION = 1209.31'
NAVD 1988 DATUM

10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' WATER PIPELINE EASEMENT
PER VOL. 1974 PG. 895

CONCRETE DRIVE

E 
US

 H
IG

HW
AY

 2
90

LOT 2
GATEWAY ESATATES, III

(VOL. 10, PG. 377)

LOT 4A
THE AMENDED PLAT FOR

THE PRESERVE, PHASE ONE
(VOL. 10, PG. 153)

LOT 3A
THE AMENDED PLAT FOR

THE PRESERVE, PHASE ONE
(VOL. 10, PG. 153)

25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

LOT 1A
THE AMENDED PLAT FOR

THE PRESERVE, PHASE ONE
(VOL. 10, PG. 153)

BENCHMARK
TOP OF BRASS DISK FOUND ELEVATION= 1233.43'
NAVD 1988 DATUM

EXISTING SEPTIC DRAINFIELD

5.02 ACRES
AAA STORAGE

DRIPPING SPRINGS, LLC
(DOC 22038565)

PROPOSED
BUILDING 10

375' x 45'
(FLEX)

PROPOSED
BUILDING 7

145' x 80'
(STORAGE)

PROPOSED
BUILDING 8

110' x 55'
(STORAGE)

PROPOSED
BUILDING 9

135' x 85'
(STORAGE)

PROP RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER QUALITY POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
110'X30' BUILDING 2 (STORAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
145'X70' BUILDING 5 (STORAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.5'X40' BUILDING 6 (STORAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.5'X40' BUILDING 4 (STORAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1228.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1229.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1221.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1220.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1219.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1210.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
145'X70' BUILDING 3 (STORAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'X30' BUILDING 1 FFE = 1229.50 (OFFICE/APT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1219.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,332 SF SEPTIC DRAINFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1228.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1220.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1218.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1209.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1219.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1218.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1209.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1209.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1208.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 1208.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1228.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
601

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
603

AutoCAD SHX Text
604

AutoCAD SHX Text
605

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
607

AutoCAD SHX Text
608

AutoCAD SHX Text
609

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
GWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1235

AutoCAD SHX Text
1235

AutoCAD SHX Text
1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
1225

AutoCAD SHX Text
1225

AutoCAD SHX Text
1220

AutoCAD SHX Text
1220

AutoCAD SHX Text
1215

AutoCAD SHX Text
1210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1205

AutoCAD SHX Text
1205

AutoCAD SHX Text
1205

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1195

AutoCAD SHX Text
1195

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=50'

RossC
Callout
10' BSL 

RossC
Callout
10' BSL

RossC
Callout
10' BSL 



From: Austin Powers
To: Planning
Subject: RE: Notice of Public Hearing Case#: VAR2024-013 and VAR2024-014
Date: Friday, January 24, 2025 10:13:08 AM

Good morning, 

I'm writing to formally express my opposition to the proposed variance applications
(VAR2024-013 and VAR2024-014) for the development located at 1300 E US 290.

During the application for Conditional Use Permit process, there were several concerns raised
about the future development including, but not necessarily limited to, the following:

1. Preserving the privacy, value and aesthetic standards of the surrounding residences.
2. Maintaining zero light pollution from the proposed development
3. Reducing sound pollution from the proposed development.

Currently, my property located to the south of this development at 186 Leafdale Trail,  is
affected by light, noise and visual pollution from the development. The existing metal fence
does not create a harmonious use of land nor does it meet the material requirements set forth
in Section 5(B) 5.16 of the Zoning Ordinance.

The applicant states that "no issues have been raised about this fence". That is simply not true
as I brought this up during the consideration for approval of the Conditional Use Permit.
Furthermore, I spoke to the developer directly about this fence before he installed it.

Due to the unique site topography with the development being higher in elevation than
residences to the south, it was determined that an 8' opaque and stone masonry wall would
help mitigate some of the concerns listed in the items noted above. I see no reason to change
those recommendations as no hardship exists for this requirement.

Additionally, the variance request to reduce the setback from 15' to 10' would have a negative
impact on the uniformity of development in the area. It would also create an unwanted
precedent for future development within the City. Maintaining the 15' setback would not
create a hardship for the developer and this request should be denied.

Also, while not directly related to the variance requests, I want to reiterate the need for
appropriate sizing and maintenance of the water quality pond. The additional impervious
coverage will generate more runoff that could create adverse flooding effects if not properly
sized and maintained. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter and I urge staff to deny approval for VAR2024-013
and VAR2024-014.

Thank you,
Austin Powers
186 Leafdale Trl

mailto:abpowers@gmail.com
mailto:planning@cityofdrippingsprings.com


Board of Adjustements  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

   
 

 
 

 

Board of Adjustments 

Meeting: 
March 4, 2025 

Project No:  VAR2024-014 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP, Planning Director 

Item Details 

Project Name: AAA Storage-Storserv Setback Variance 

Property Location: 1300 E US 290 

Legal Description: 5.02 Acres out of the CH Mallot Survey 

Applicant: Shawn Beichler, AAA Storage 

Property Owner: John Muhuch, 

Request: 
Applicant is requesting a variance waiving the requirement to construct an 8’ masonry 

screening.   



Planning Department Staff Report   
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting a variance to waive a requirement of the approved Conditional Use Permit for an 8’ masonry 

screening along the western and southern property boundaries of 1300 E US 290. The site was initially developed in the 

City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) during its first phase. On April 4, 2023, the property was annexed to accommodate 

an increase in impervious cover for the construction of a second phase of the development. 

As part of the approval, several conditions were included to help bring the site into conformance with City standards. City 

Code requires masonry screening for commercial uses adjacent to residential zoning districts. While the adjacent residences 

are located in the ETJ and this requirement would not typically apply, a condition was added to the CUP to mitigate potential 

adverse impacts on these residences. The condition states: 

"The applicant must provide 8-foot masonry screening in the form of stone or brick, as best determined by the Development 

Review Committee (DRC), along the western and southern property boundaries consistent with Section 5.10.1 of the Zoning 

Ordinance." 

During construction of Phase 1, the applicant erected a metal fence along the majority of the western property line. 

Project Timeline: 

 September 17, 2020 – Phase 1 site plan approved (ETJ) 

 May 19, 2022 – Phase 2 site plan extension approved (ETJ) 

 ≈ March/April 2023 – Metal fence erected 

 April 4, 2023 – Annexation and Zoning approved 

 September 5, 2023 – Conditional Use Permit approved 

 March 28, 2024 – Staff inspected the site for runoff issues 

 

 

The applicant provided the following statement for the justification of the request: 

“Fence has already been constructed and in place at the address location. It's made of metal set into a concrete 

slab. Requesting to leave this structure in place over removing it to replace with masonry. This will create a 

hardship in that the existing fence footings and concrete pavement all be demolished and reconstructed for the 

fence. The existing fence provides the screening requirement, and no issues have been raised about this fence. 

The rest of the Phase 1 and Phase 2 development is following City of Dripping Springs Development Ordinances 

as a part of the Annexation agreement with the city, which would have otherwise only followed ETJ 

requirements.” 

 

 

 

  



Planning Department Staff Report   
 

Existing Fence: 

 

 

Surrounding Properties 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North PDD – Gateway Village 
Vacant Land. Future residential 

and commercial site 

Not Shown East Commercial Services (CS) Retail 

South Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Residential 

West Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Residential 

 

Approval Criteria for Variance (2.22.2-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 
1. there are special circumstances or conditions 

affecting the land involved such that the literal 

enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter would 

deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of the 

land; and 

There are no special circumstances or unique physical 

conditions on the property that would deprive the applicant 

of reasonable use of the land. The site can be used as 

intended without waiving the masonry screening 

requirement. 

2. the variance is necessary for the preservation and 

enjoyment of a substantial property right of the 

applicant; and by preserving the natural features and 

topography of the land; and 

The variance is not necessary to preserve a substantial 

property right, as the applicant is able to fully develop the 

site and operate a self-storage facility while complying 

with the screening requirement. 

3. the granting of the variance will not be detrimental 

to the public health, safety or welfare, or injurious 

to other property within the area; and 

Waiving the masonry screening requirement could 

negatively affect the adjacent residential properties by 

failing to mitigate adverse visual and noise impacts from 

the self-storage facility. This would be detrimental to the 



Planning Department Staff Report   
 

welfare of neighboring residents. 

4. the granting of the variance constitutes a minimal 

departure from this Chapter; and 

Waiving the requirement for masonry screening entirely 

does not constitute a minimal departure. It eliminates a key 

condition intended to reduce the impact of the project on 

adjacent residential properties. 

5. the subject circumstances or conditions giving rise 

to the alleged hardship are not self-imposed, are not 

based solely on economic gain or loss, and do not 

generally affect most properties in the vicinity of 

the property; and 

The circumstances are self-imposed, as the applicant was 

aware of the screening requirement when the Conditional 

Use Permit was approved. The hardship appears to stem 

from the applicant’s reluctance to comply with a condition 

of approval rather than site constraints. 

6. Granting the variance is in harmony with the spirit, 

general purpose, and intent of this Chapter so that:  

a.  the public health, safety and welfare may 

be secured; and  

b. that substantial justice may be done. 

The variance is not in harmony with the intent of the 

ordinance, which seeks to protect adjacent properties from 

adverse impacts of commercial uses. Denial ensures the 

ordinance’s purpose is upheld and substantial justice is 

achieved for the neighboring residents. 

 

 

Summary and Recommendation 

At their regular meeting on January 27, 2025, the Planning & Zoning Commission voted unanimously to recommend 

denial.  

Staff recommends denial of the variance request.  

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of the 

Variance request. 

Meetings Schedule 

January 27, 2025 Planning & Zoning Commission 

March 4, 2025 Board of Adjustments 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Variance Application 

Attachment 2 – Application Materials 

 

Recommended Action Recommend denial of the requested variance  

Alternatives/Options Recommend approval of the variance with or without conditions. 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 



City of Dripping Springs 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street •MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX78620 

DRIPPING SPRINGS 
Texas 

512 .858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com 

Case Number (staff use only): _____ _ 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME-"J=oh""'n.:...;M:.:.=u=hi=ch"'-------------------------

STREET ADDRESS 1300 E US Highway 290 West 

CITY Dripping Springs STATE."""T~X _______ ZIP CODE~7~8~62~0 ____ _ 

PHONE (512) 657-6789 EMAIL johnsmuhich@pmail.com 

APPLICANT NAME~S~ha~w~n~B~e~ic~h~le~r ____________________ _ 

COMPANY AAA Storage-Storserv 

STREET ADDRESS 1300 E US Highway 290 

CITY Dripping Springs STATE~T~X _______ ZIP CODE.-'7--=8=6=20"'------

PHONE (704) 754-3200 EMAIL Shawn.Beichler@AAAStorage.com 

APPLICATION TYPE 

0 ALTERNATIVE STANDARD XVARIANCE 

0 SPECIAL EXCEPTION 0WAIVER 

Revised 2/5/2020 Page 1 of 4 



PROJECT NAME 

PRO ERTY ADDRESS 

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TAX ID# 

LOCATED IN 

-

PROPERTY INFORMATION --
fest, r: ripping Spri gs, TX 78620 

R. 

X CITY LIMITS 

0 EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION 

0 HISTORIC DISTRICT OVERLAY 

o Description of request & reference to sectfon of the Code of Ordinances applicable to request : 

The Request is for the city to accept the existing metal fence as shown in the pictures as a part of the Phase 
1 development and not require the fence to be demolished and a brand new masonry fence constructed 
per the Conditional Use Permit, Ordinance No. 2023.28. Item No. 4. 

o Description of the hardship or reasons the Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance 

/ Waiver is being requested : 

Fence has already been constructed and in place at the address location. It's made of metal set into a 
concrete slab. Requesting to leave this structure in place over removing it to replace with masonry. This will 
create a hardship in that the existing fence footings and concrete pavement all be demolished and 
reconstructed for the fence. The existing fence provides the screening requirement, and no issues have 
been raised about this fence. 

o Description of how the project exceeds Code requirements in order to mitigate or offset the 

effects of the proposed alternative standard/special exception/variance/waiver: 

The rest of the Phase 1 and Phase 2 development is following City of Dripping Springs 

Development Ordinances as a part of the Annexation agreement with the city, which would have 

otherwise only followed ETJ requirements. 

PHYSICAL' 511 Mercer Street • MAILiNG: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

51 2.858.4725 • cityofdrippinesprinos.com 
Page 2 of 4 



APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE 

The undersigned, here confirms that he/she/it is the owner of the above described real property and 
further, that y is authorized to act as my agent and representative with 
respect to this Application amendment process. 
(As recorded in the Hays DUi:wflR cords, Vol. , Pg. ___ ____;_, 

COUNTY OF HAY-S 01 
" If\ § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 3rotay of D~®~ 

2ot1_by ~.u4~-
Notary Public, State of gr ~NJ ·,f"<il 

PHYSICAL 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

51 2.858.4725 • cityofdrippinesprines.com 

Page 3 of4 



All required items and information (including all applicable above listed exhibits and fees) must be received by the City for 
an a • and req~ ~~~sidered complete. Incomplete submissions will not be accepted. By signing below, I 
ackn gg ti '/ /II/ ugh and met the above requirements for a complete submittal: 

STAFF 

a 
%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

• Date 

CHECKLIST 

APPLICANT 

a 
%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

%¡� 

Completed Application Form - including all required signatures and notarized 

Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule) 

PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted documents 

When submiNing digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what digital 

contents are included. 

Billing Contact Form 
Photographs 
Map/Site Plan/Plat 

Cut/Fill Data Sheet (i/ applicable) 

Architectural Elevations (if applicable) 

Description and reason for request (attach extra sheets if necesSaTy) 

Public Notice Sign - $25 
Proof of Property Ownership-Tax Certificate or Deed 

Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement - signed with attached 
photos/drawings (required if marked "Yes (Required)" on above Lighting Ordinance 
Section of application) 

PHYSICALS 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippinesprinqs.com 
Page 4 of 4 




